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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 29 JULY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Hul ley,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Morn ing  Mr  Cha i r.  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Good morn ing  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Morn ing .   A re  we ready,  I  see we have 

had qu i te  a  few techn ica l  h i t ches?  Mr  Hu l ley  are  we 

ready?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   We are  ready to  p roceed now Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you very  much.   Mr  Cha i r  today ’s  

ev idence wou ld  re la te  to  Co lone l  W S Mhlongo.   You may  

reca l l  tha t  he  was imp l ica ted  by  Genera l  Johan Booysen 

re la t ing  to  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  Mr  Booysen –  or  tha t  Genera l  

Booysen a t tached to  h is  a f f idav i t .   That  a f f idav i t  be ing  o f  

Mr  Terence Jouber t .    

 You wou ld  reca l l  tha t  Mr  Jouber t  has tes t i f ied  and 

Mr  –  Co lone l  Mh longo s tar ted  to  tes t i f y  on  the  las t  

occas ion  I  be l ieve  i t  was the  2 n d  o f  March but  un fo r tunate l y  

we ran  out  o f  t ime and you ind ica ted  tha t  we wou ld  have to  20 

ar range fo r  h im to  comple te  h i s  tes t imony.    

 Today is  the  da te  fo r  the  comple t ion  o f  tha t  

tes t imony.   I  unders tand tha t  he  is  s t i l l  represented by  

Advocate  Mana la  today and there  w i l l  be  a  –  there  w i l l  be  

an  in te rpre te r  tha t  he  w i l l  in te rpre t  th rough.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.    Wi l l  h is  counse l  p lace  

h imse l f  on  record  p lease.  

ADV MANALA:   Good morn ing  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing .  

ADV MANALA:    Yes I  conf i rm I  s t i l l  appear  on  beha l f  o f  

COLONEL MHLONGO – Co lone l  Mh longo and tha t  I  am 

ins t ruc ted  by  Mar inga A t to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes jus t  ment ion  your  name aga in .  10 

ADV MANALA:    Mana la  ME.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay thank you very  much.  

ADV MANALA:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   I s  our  in te rpre ter  Mr  Mzotho?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   That  i s  so  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay Mr  Mzotho are  you there?  

MR MZOTHO:   I  am Cha i r  good morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing .   Thank you fo r  ava i l ing  

yourse l f .   Le t  us  jus t  do  the  oa th  aga in .   P lease jus t  s ta te  

your  fu l l  names aga in  Mr  Mzotho.  20 

MR MZOTHO:    Yes,  Khu lekan i  Dumolwakhe Mzotho .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MZOTHO:    I  do  no t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Do you cons ider  i t  b ind ing  on  your  
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consc ience?  

MR MZOTHO:    I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Do you swear  tha t  you are  

pro f i c ien t  in  Eng l ish  and in  I s i -Zu lu  and tha t  you a re  ab le  

to  in te rpre t / t rans la te  f rom Eng l i sh  to  I s i -Zu lu  and v ice  

versa  and tha t  i f  you  are  ca l led  upon to  t rans la te  or  

in te rpre t  f rom Is i -Zu lu  to  Eng l i sh  and f rom Eng l ish  to  I s i -

Zu lu  in  these proceed ings you a re  under taken to  do  so  to  

the  best  o f  your  knowledge and ab i l i t y  and honest ly?  

MR MZOTHO:    Yes I  do  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and 

say,  so  he lp  me God.  

MR MZOTHO:    So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you Mr  Mzotho you are  du ly  sworn  

in .   Okay.   Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You –  you may proceed.   Maybe  jus t  in   

one or  two sentences you can fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  

ment ion  what  the  rea l  i ssue or  i ssues a re  tha t  we are  go ing  

to  cover  in  –  w i th  Mr  –  or  Co lone l  Mh longo ’s  ev idence.   As  20 

I  reca l l  the  rea l  i ssues was tha t  i t  had been I  th ink  Genera l  

Booysen had tes t i f ied  tha t  o r  ra ther  you –  Mr  Jouber t  had 

tes t i f ied  tha t  Co lone l  Mh longo had to ld  h im cer ta in  th ings  

wh ich  were  –  wh ich  i f  t rue  wou ld  imp l ica te  Advocate  J iba .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   About  Mr  Nxasana.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   That  i s  cor rec t .   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Do you want  to  jus t  cover  tha t  in  two 

or  th ree  sentences befo re  we cont inue?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   So in  a  nu tshe l l  

inso fa r  as  the  d ispute  be tween Mr  Jouber t  and Co lone l  

Mh longo is  concerned accord ing  to  Mr  Jouber t  he  had had 

a  d iscuss ion  w i th  Co lone l  Mh longo in  wh ich  Co lone l  

Mh longo had ind i ca ted  to  h im tha t  i s  to  Co lone l  –  ah  to  Mr  

Jouber t  tha t  i t  was the  in ten t ion  on  the  ins t ruc t ions o f  Ms –  10 

o f  Advocate  J iba  to  f ind  d i r t  on  Mr  Nxasana who  was a t  

tha t  s tage the  newly  appo in ted  Na t iona l  D i rec to r  o f  Pub l ic  

Prosecut ions.  

 To  p lace tha t  in  contex t  you may reca l l  tha t  

Advocate  J iba  had been the  ac t ing  Nat iona l  D i rec to r  o f  

Pub l ic  Prosecut ions and a f te r  her  ac t ing  appo in tment  –  he r  

ac t ing  appo in tment  came to  an  end and Mr  Nxasana had 

been appo in ted  to  take  over  the  ro le  o f  the  Nat iona l  

D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  Prosecut ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV HULLEY SC:   So  tha t  in  a  nu tshe l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   I s  what  the  issue was about .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And what  t ransp i red  i n  those 
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conversa t ions tha t  took p lace be fore  –  be tween Co lone l  

Mh longo and Mr  Jouber t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   No tha t  i s  f ine .   And then – then 

the  Reg is t ra r  can  swear  in  the  w i tness.   P lease admin is te r  

the  oa th  Reg is t ra r  to  the  w i tness.  

REGISTRAR:   Co lone l  Mh longo w i l l  you  be tak ing  the  oa th  

or  the  a f f i rmat ion? 

COLONEL MHLONGO:   I  w i l l  take  the  oa th .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Names are  Welcome S i thembise  10 

Mhlongo.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

CHAIRPERSON:   In te rpre te r.    

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on –  hang  on.   Mr  In te rpre ter  can 

you hear  the  Reg is t ra r?   I  th ink  there  i s  a  p rob lem.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  th ink  th is  i s  the  prob lem you were  20 

hav ing  be fore  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  i s  why we took so  long to  s ta r t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Ja  and we do not  know what  i s  

caus ing  i t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   No.  I  cannot  be  –  be  o f  any ass is tance  

when i t  comes to  techno logy.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   I  have got  somebody who is  a 

techn ic ian  th is  s ide  bu t  he  can on ly  check i f  there  i s  a  

p rob lem f rom th is  s ide  as  I  unders tand the  pos i t ion .   

Reg is t ra r  cou ld  you ask  h im to  come and check  and be  

ab le  to  te l l  whether  i t  i s  a  p rob lem tha t  can be f rom th is  

s ide  or  whether  i t  i s  no t  th is  s ide .   Can you hear  us  now Mr  

Mzotho?  No he s t i l l  cannot  hear  us .   I t  i s  on  h is  s ide .   Oh 

is  tha t  so .   Mr  Mzotho can you hear  me now?  No he  cannot  

hear.   Mr  Hu l ley  you can s t i l l  hea r  me? 

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  can  hear  you c lea r ly  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Ja .   Oh.  The –  wa i t  th is  i s  go ing  to  

be  a  prob lem now.   I  am not  sure  –  maybe we  shou ld  

ad journ .   Maybe we shou ld  ad journ  to  t ry  and see whethe r  

the  prob lem can be f i xed  to  enab le  us  to  cont inue unt i l  we 

are  f in i shed w i thout  keep ing  i t  coming up.   Ja .   Okay I  

th ink  le t  us  ad journ  and the  techn ica l  peop le  can  t ry  and 

f ind  ou t  how to  f ix  i t  bu t  I  do  no t  want  a  s i tua t ion  where  i t  

i s  f i xed  fo r  f i ve  m inutes  –  we s tar t  and then we have to  

ad journ  aga in .   I f  i t  cannot  be  f i xed  proper ly  we might  have 

to  see what  e lse  can be done.    20 

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  see  Mr  Mzotho has sent  a  message to  

the  e f fec t  tha t  he  can hear  us  now but  h is  screen had  

f rozen fo r  a  wh i le .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Mzotho can you hear  me? 

MR MZOTHO:    I  can  DCJ yes.   Every th ing  jus t  went  f rozen  
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and i t  i s  a  go .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And do you know whethe r  there  is  any  

par t i cu la r  p rob lem f rom your  s ide? 

MR MZOTHO:    None –  none tha t  I  can see f rom the  look o f  

th ings.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MZOTHO:   I t  f roze  when the  Reg is t ra r  was 

admin is te r i ng  an  oath .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay le t  us  hope i t  i s  go ing  to  be  

f ine  now.   Le t  the  Reg is t ra r  s ta r t  a f resh w i th  the  oa th  and 10 

then hopefu l l y  we w i l l  be  ab le  to  cont inue.   Reg is t ra r  jus t  

s ta r t  a f resh w i th  admin is te r i ng  the  oa th .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Name is  Welcome S i thembiso  

Mhlongo.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on.   I s  the re  a  de lay  in  –  i n  peop le  

be ing  heard?  Reg is t ra r  i s  there  a  de lay  be fore  you hear  

what  the  w i tness is  say ing .  

REGISTRAR:   Yes –  yes Cha i rpe rson there  is  a  de lay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When I  am speak ing  is  there  a  de lay  as  
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we l l .  

REGISTRAR:   I t  seems to  be  f ine  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Okay  I  th ink  jus t  repeat  the  

las t  quest ion  to  the  w i tness.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Yes I  do .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  10 

he lp  me God.  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank –  thank you Co lone l  Mh longo.   

Okay le t  us  cont inue then.   Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Co lone l  we lcome 

back.   Now on the  las t  occas ion  tha t  you tes t i f ied  we were  

a t  a  po in t  where  we were  go ing  to  move onto  your  –  to  the  

t ranscr ip t  o f  a  conversa t ion  wh ich  occur red  between you  

and Mr  Jouber t .   You ind i ca ted  o f  course  tha t  conversa t ion  

took p lace on the  25 t h  o f  November  o f  2013.   Do you reca l l  20 

what  I  am re fer r ing  to?  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A l low the  in te rpre ter.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now –   

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Yes I  can remember  tha t  Cha i r.  
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ADV HULLEY SC:   Be fore  we go in to  the  t ranscr ip t  and the  

aspects  o f  the  t ransc r ip t  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  dea l  w i th  

perhaps we can jus t  s ta r t  w i th  –  to  p lace  the  t ransc r ip t  

i t se l f  in  contex t .   Perhaps we can  s tar t  o f f  w i th  the  –  the 

a f f idav i t  o f  a  Ms Queen Mhlongo.   Do you reca l l  tha t?    

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Yes Cha i r  I  do  remember  tha t  

a f f idav i t  because  I  am the  one who sent  i t .   Yes Cha i r  I  do  

–  I  beg your  pa rdon Cha i r  I  do  remember  tha t  a f f idav i t  

because i t  was sent  to  me by the  commiss ion .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And in  fac t  you  f i led  a  response  to  that  10 

a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   A l though I  cannot  remember  

because i t  was a  long t ime ago but  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  I  d id  

rep ly.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now jus t  to  ident i f y  the  a f f idav i t  fo r  you 

Mr  Cha i r  we w i l l  be  dea l ing  w i th  Bund le  LEA10 .   The 

spec i f i c  documents  i s  to  be  found a t  page 65  o f  tha t  

bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  i t .   Mr  In te rpre te r.  

MR MZOTHO:   Thank you Cha i r.    20 

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Wel l  Cha i r  my documents  are  no t  

we l l  o rgan ised pe rhaps i t  m igh t  take  a  b i t  o f  t ime fo r  me to  

f ind  i t  and I  ask  you to  bear  w i th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  Co lone l  Mh longo ’s  counse l  o r  a t to rney 

in  a  d i f fe ren t  bu i l d ing  o r  away or  a re  they c lose  by?  
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ADV MANALA:   Cha i r  we are  in  separa te  bu i ld ings .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  in  separa te  bu i ld ings.  

ADV MANALA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know I  do  no t  want  us  to  be  de layed 

because the  w i tness does not  have the  same bund le  as  we  

have.   Mr  Hu l ley  do  you know whether  the  on ly  document  

tha t  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  –  tha t  you wou ld  be  re fe r r ing  h im to  

rea l l y  o r  there  may be two or  th ree  o thers .   I  am jus t  t ry ing  

to  see whether  i t  i s  war ran ted.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Abso lu te ly.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  jus t  want  to  see whether  i t  i s  war ran ted 

to  ad journ  and –  and somebody makes sure  he  has go t  

exact ly  what  we have or  whether  we w i l l  be  ab le  to  make  

do w i thout  ge t t ing  h im a  bund le .  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Cha i r  I  seem to  f ind  the  a f f idav i t  

here  bu t  here  is  wr i t ten  Y11TJ115 .   I t  i s  wr i t ten  ‘ I ,  Queen 

Namise le  Mhlongo ’ .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r igh t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   He is  re fe r r ing  to  page 115.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Hu l ley.  20 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  

see because the  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  am re fer r ing  to  does  

appear  in  d i f fe ren t  p laces.   But  now the  –  so  i t  i s  poss ib le  

tha t  he  has go t  a  d i f fe ren t  –  o r  he  has go t  the  same 

a f f idav i t  bu t  he  is  re fe r r ing  to  i t  in  a  d i f fe ren t  p lace .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  I  seem to  th ink  las t  t ime tha t  was one 

o f  the  prob lems as we l l  tha t  he  wou ld  f ind  documents  

loca ted in  a  d i f fe ren t  p lace  f rom where  –  I  sa id  a t  leas t  

m ine were  –  was loca ted.   So d id  you say Mr  Hu l ley  th is  i s  

the  main  a f f idav i t  you wou ld  be  dea l ing  w i th  o r  wha t  i s  the 

pos i t ion?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Th is  i s  –  pardon th is  i s  one o f  the  

a f f idav i t s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   How many documents  w i l l  you  be… 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Can I  –  I  am go ing  to  be  re fer r i ng  to  I  10 

be l ieve  about  fou r  documents .  Perhaps I  can ident i f y  them 

so tha t  the  w i tness can e i ther  f lag  i t  o r  take  i t  ou t  

separa te ly  so  tha t  we be ready to  dea l  w i th  i t  as  soon as  I  

ment ion  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   I s  tha t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay maybe le t  us  –  le t  us  do  i t  th is  way.   

Ja  ment ion  the  documents  le t  us  see i f  he  can f ind  them.   

Or  what  I  am go ing  to  do  l e t  me ad jou rn  –  iden t i f y  the  

documents ,  te l l  h im the  documents  –  le t  h im have them 20 

ready a t  hand so  when I  come back we dea l  w i th  each one  

he does not  have  to  look  wh i le  I  am wai t ing  here .   Le t  h im 

have them ready  tha t  w i l l  be  those tha t  wou ld  be  re fer red  

to  and then we can –  we can –  and then we can re fer  to  

parag raphs in  those documents  ra ther  than the  page 
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numbers  fo r  –  fo r  –  to  make sure  tha t  there  is  no  prob lem.   

But  you can a lways jus t  announce  what  the  page numbers  

are  bu t  we can  jus t  ma in l y  use  the  pa ragraphs  o f  the  

documents .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because h is  documents  are  no t  the  same 

as ours .   So le t  me ad journ  fo r  wha t  ten  m inutes .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t  w i l l  be  

more  than su f f i c ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   I  w i l l  ad jou rn  fo r  ten  m inutes  to  10 

enab le  tha t  to  happen.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   Co lone l .  

COLONEL MHLONGO:   Yebo.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now the  f i rs t  document  I  wan t  you to  

look  a t  i s  a t  page 6  o f  Bund le  LEA tha t  i s  your  a f f idav i t ,  

your  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  to  the  commiss ion  wh ich  is  da ted  the  9 t h 

o f  May 2019.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

REGISTRAR :    We wi l l  now resume wi th  today ’s  20 

proceed ings.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Can you hear  me? 

ADV HULLEY SC :    I  can .   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you.   Has the  p rob lem been  

sor ted  ou t?  
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ADV HULLEY SC :    I  be l ieve  i t  has ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I t  seems 

tha t  the  power  was s imp ly  rear ranged fo r  m is ter  –  fo r  

Co lone l  Mh longo.   So tha t  i s  where  the  d i f f i cu l t y  came in ,  

bu t  he  has the  same documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    And he has the  same number ing  

sys tem as we l l .   Perhaps w i th  the  except ion  o f  one  

document ,  bu t  he  does have the  same number ing  sys tem 

as us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  cont inue  then.  10 

ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   So,  Co lone l  –  

sor ry.   We –  I  had re fer red  you to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Ms Mhlongo and  tha t  a f f idav i t  appears  a t  page 65 o f  

Bund le  LEA-10.   You have got  i t?  

INTERPRETER :    Yes.  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  I  found i t  Cha i r.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    And I  ind ica ted  to  you tha t  you had had 

an oppor tun i ty  to  cons ider  tha t  a f f idav i t  and had,  in  fac t ,  

f i l ed  a  response to  the  a f f idav i t .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes.   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HULLEY SC :    And your  response i s  in  you r  a f f idav i t  

da ted  the  22n d  o f  February  o f  2021 wh ich  appears  a t  page 

210.27.    

COLONEL MHLONGO :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.    

ADV HULLEY SC :    And i f  you wou ld  tu rn  to  the  second 
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las t  page o f  your  a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  210.38,  Mr  Cha i r.  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]  

ADV HULLEY SC :    210.38.  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    You w i l l  see  f rom tha t  –  the  head ing ;  

D iscuss ion  w i th  Ms Queen Ncamis i le  Mhlongo,  you  w i l l  see  

f rom paragraph 36 to  40 ,  you dea l  w i th  her  a f f idav i t .    

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    And i f  I  unders tand you co r rec t l y  and 

hav ing  read th rough your  a f f idav i t ,  i f  I  unders tand what  you  10 

are  say ing  in  your  a f f idav i t  cor rec t l y.   You are  admi t t ing  the  

fac t  tha t  you d id  have a  d iscuss ion  w i th  Ms Mhlongo and 

you are  a l so  admi t t ing  the  fac t  tha t  the  –  wh i le  what  she 

says is  co r rec t ,  i f  I  unders tand  you cor rec t l y,  you are  

say ing ,  you d i sagree w i th  the  contex t  in  wh ich  –  she has  

not  p roper l y  p laced i t  in  contex t .   Do I  unders tand tha t  

cor rec t l y?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.    

ADV HULLEY SC :    Now,  le t  us  then go to  Ms Mh longo ’s  

a f f idav i t .   So tha t ,  once aga in ,  i s  a t  page 65 o f  the  same 20 

bund le .    

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  look  a t  paragraph 2  o f  

tha t  a f f idav i t .    

COLONEL MHLONGO :    I  see  i t .  
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ADV HULLEY SC :    Accord ing  to  Ms Mhlongo,  she says 

tha t ”  

“On Fr iday,  the  15 t h  o f  November  o f  2013,  du r ing  

the  day,  I  went  to  the  th i rd  f loor  in  the  Southe rn  

L i fe  Bu i ld ing  to  see Co lone l  Welcome Sthembiso  

Mhlongo,  as  I  usua l l y  do . . . ”  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    I f  I  unders tand cor rec t l y,  you conf i rm 

tha t  i s  in  fac t  accura te .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Cha i r,  I  can  say tha t  i t  i s  cor rec t  10 

in  the  sense tha t  she usua l ly  came to  see me because we  

were  in  the  same bu i ld ing .   So she f requented my o f f i ce .   

So even though I  cannot  say  w i th  cer ta in ty  tha t  on  th i s  

par t i cu la r  day on  th is  par t i cu la r  t ime she d id  come and see 

me but  she d id  f requent  my o f f i ce .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    And she goes on to  say tha t :  

“We sa t  and we s tar ted  ta lk ing  about  the  

appo in tment  o f  Mxo l i s i  Nxasana  as  the  new 

Nat iona l  D i rec to r  o f  Pub l ic  Prosecu t ions and how 

happy I  was as  someone who is  f rom Durban who 20 

happens to  be  a  c lose  person to  me.  

I  thought  he  was go ing  to  share  the  same 

sent iments  as  he  knows Mxo l is i  as  we l l . . . ”  

Now do you conf i rm tha t  those sen tences . . . [ in te rvenes]  

INTERPRETER :    [ In te rpre t ing ]  
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COLONEL MHLONGO :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  d ispute  tha t  as  

u t te r  l ies  tha t  we d id  have a  conversa t ion  to  th is  e f fec t .   I  

d ispute  tha t .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    We wi l l  ge t  to  tha t  in  a  moment .   She 

goes on to  say:  

“However,  he  s ta r ted . . .  

That  i s  now re fe rence to  you.  

“ . . . s ta r ted  say ing  tha t  he  hopes tha t  Mxo l is i  can  

le t  R ichard  Mdlu l i  o f f  the  hook as  he  has been 

promised to  head the  In te l l igence Un i t  in  the  10 

KZN i f  Md lu l i  i s  no t  recharged. . . ”  

You have . . . [ in te rvenes]  

INTERPRETER :    [ In te rpre t ing ]  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Cha i rpe rson,  we d id  no t  have a  

conversa t ion  to  th is  e f fec t  w i th  Ms Mhlongo.   And I  wou ld  

a lso  ask  the  Cha i rperson to  remember  tha t  she has 

ind ica ted  tha t  she had recorded these conversa t ions bu t  

when asked to  p roduce the  record ings,  the  same was not  

fo r thcoming.   So,  th is  a f f idav i t ,  I  w i l l  ask  tha t  i t  no t  be  used 

because i t  i s  fu l l  o f  l i es .   We d id  no t  have any conversa t ion  20 

to  th is  e f fec t .   These are  u t te r  l ies  s imp ly  made  up to  

suppor t  what  was  sa id  by  Mr  Jouber t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  In te rpre te r,  two quest ions back when 

Mr  Hu l ley  asked  a  quest ion  and  re fer red  to  Mr  Mdu l i  o r  

re fe r red  to  what  Ms Mhlongo sa id  co lone l  –  Ms Mhlongo 
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sa id  Co lone l  Mh longo sa id .   You jus t  sa id  Mdlu l i  w i thout  

ment ion ing  h i s  name.   The name re f lec ted  in  pa ragraph 2  

i s  R ichard  Mdlu l i  bu t  p robab ly  Co lone l  Mh longo knew tha t  

you were  re fer r i ng  to  R ichard  Mdlu l i .   Do you want  to  jus t  

conf i rm wi th  the  w i tness tha t  he  unders tood tha t  when you 

sa id  Mdlu l i  you  were  re fer r ing  to  R ichard  Mdlu l i?  

INTERPRETER :    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r.    

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  unders tood.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you.   Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    She goes on to  say:  10 

“He a lso . . .  

Refe r r ing ,  once aga in ,  to  you.  

“He a lso  ment ioned tha t  the  r igh t  cand ida te  was  

Nomgcobo J iba . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Nomgcobo J iba .   

INTERPRETER :    [Speak ing  ve rnacu la r ]  . . .Nomgcobo J iba .   

Thank you.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Once aga in ,  Cha i r.   That  i s  a  l ie .   I  

on ly  know th i s  young lady as  Mh longo.   When she came 

here ,  I  go t  to  know her  tha t  she is  Mhlongo  and her  parents  20 

and I  go  to  the  same p lace o f  worsh ip .   And I  wou ld  have  

never  d i scussed w i th  he r,  g iven her  leve l ,  mat te rs  o f  th is  

sens i t i v i t y.   Wha t  I  th ink  i s  happen ing  here  is  t ha t  th is  

who le  th ing  has once aga in  been  made up so  tha t  i t  w i l l  

con f i rm the  l ies  tha t  were  to ld  by  Mr  Jouber t .  
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ADV HULLEY SC :    Then in  pa rag raph 3  she says the  

fo l low ing:  

“He. . .  

Once aga in  re fer r ing  to  you.  

“ . . . s ta r ted  te l l ing  me tha t  Mxo l is i  Nxasana was  

not  a  k ind  man as  I  thought  and  tha t  he  knew 

th is  f rom in te rv iewing h is  re la t i ves .  

A t  the  t ime I  d id  no t  unders tand what  was go ing  

on.  

He cont inued by  te l l ing  tha t  he  knows Mxo l is i  10 

Nxasana f rom a  long t ime ago when they had 

had a l te rca t ion  about  a  c l ien t  o f  Nxasana whom 

he (Mhlongo)  had  ar res ted . . . ”  

D id  you have a  d i scuss ion  about  tha t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Cha i rperson,  I  d ispute  tha t .   We 

never  had such conversa t ion .   I t  is  a  l ie .   And a t  no  s tage  

d id  I  ever  a r res t  Mr  Nxasana ’s  c l ien t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  you cont inue,  Mr  Hu l ley.   

Mr  In te rpre te r,  I  am go ing  to  suggest  tha t  where  

Ms Mhlongo is  t a lk ing  about  wha t  Co lone l  Mh longo sa id ,  20 

you use d i rec t  language to  Co lone l  Mh longo and say:   Ms 

Mhlongo says th is  –  you sa id  th is ,  you sa id  tha t  you sa id  

tha t  so  tha t  i t  i s  c lear  tha t  you a re  say ing  Ms Mhlongo is  

say ing  th ings tha t  she is  a t t r ibu t ing  to  Co lone l  Mh longo.   

Because when you use a  th i rd  person,  the  way you have 
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done i t ,  i t  m igh t  cause confus ion  as  to  whom Ms Mh longo –  

whethe r  you are  ta lk ing  about  Ms Mhlongo hav ing  sa id  

those th ings or  Co lone l  Mh longo.   I s  tha t  f ine  w i th  you?  

INTERPRETER :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r.   That  i s  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [Speak ing  vernacu la r ]   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

INTERPRETER :    I . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r i gh t .   P lease cont inue,  

Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   She then goes  

on to  say tha t  he ,  re fe r r ing  to  yourse l f :  10 

“He then cont inued to  te l l  me tha t  Nxasana has 

many proper t ies  around Durban and he  

ment ioned Ntuzuma,  Umlaz i ,  P ine town and K loo f ,  

amongst  o thers . . . ”  

So what  she is  say ing  is  tha t  you in fo rmed her  tha t  

Nxasana had many proper t ies  around Durban and the  

proper t ies  tha t  you ment ioned were  in  Ntuzuma,  in  Umlaz i ,  

in  P ine town and K loo f .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    I  d ispute  tha t ,  Cha i r.   A t  no  s tage 

d id  I  speak to  her  about  Mr  Nxasana ’s  p roper t ies  because I  20 

do  not  know where  Mr  Nxasana ’s  p roper t ies  are  s i tua ted .    

ADV HULLEY SC :    Now,  i f  we  can tu rn  then to  your  

a f f idav i t  wh ich ,  once aga in  Mr  Cha i r,  fo r  your  bene f i t  i s  a t  

page 210.27.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  a re  you . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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INTERPRETER :    [Speak ing  vernacu la r ]    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   A re  you go ing  to  come back  

to  th is  a f f idav i t ,  Mr  Hu l ley,  o r  you are  done w i th  i t?  

ADV HULLEY SC :    I  am done w i th  i t .   I  m igh t  re fe r  back to  

i t  depend ing  on how he respond to  some o f  the  quest ions 

bu t  fo r  p resent  purposes,  I  am done w i th  i t .   Thank you,  

Mr  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  cont inue .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    So ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  l ook  a t  page 

210.38,  s i r.   That  i s  f rom paragraph 36.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say 36 ,  pa ragraph  36,  Mr  

Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Have you got  i t ,  Co lone l  

Mh longo?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  I  have got  i t .   In  my las t  

a f f idav i t .    

INTERPRETER :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  In te rpre te r,  he  has conf i rmed  tha t  he  

has go t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

INTERPRETER :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Now in  your  a f f idav i t ,  s i r,  you say the  

fo l low ing:  

“Ms Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t  takes the  substance o f  
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our  d i scuss ions ou t  o f  contex t .  

We were  co l leagues ta lk ing  about  the  

appo in tment  o f  our  new Head,  the  Nat iona l  

D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  Prosecut ions. . . ”  

Paragraph 37.   So,  maybe you shou ld  t rans la te  tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    I  am not  sure  i f  i t  requ i res  a  t rans la t ion  

bu t  tha t  i s  the  t rans la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

INTERPRETER :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  In te rpre te r.  

INTERPRETER :    [ In te rpre t ing ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Go on to  parag raph 37,  to  say:  

“ I  ment ioned to  Ms Mhlongo,  as  I  have 

ment ioned to  Mr  Jouber t ,  tha t  Mr  Nxasana had 

t rea ted  me bad ly  in  one case invo lv ing  one o f  h is  

c l ien ts  as  an  a t to rney and tha t  I  d id  no t  l i ke  h im  

f rom tha t  inc ident . . . ”  

INTERPRETER :    [Speak ing  vernacu la r ]   . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV HULLEY SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

INTERPRETER :    [ In te rpre t ing ]  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  s i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you unders tand . . . [ in te rvenes]  

INTERPRETER :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Do you unders tand,  Co lone l  Mh longo,  

tha t  what  Mr  Hu l l ey  i s  re fe r r ing  to ,  i s  what  you sa id  in  your  

a f f idav i t ,  respond ing  to  Ms Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t?   Do you  

unders tand tha t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    I  do  unders tand tha t  Cha i r,  bu t  i f  I  

may perhaps exp la in  he re  tha t  th is  i s  a  conversa t ion  I  was 

hav ing  w i th  Ms Mhlongo as  another  person who is  a l so  o f  

Mh longo su rname.   We were  d i scuss ing  h im.   I  ment ioned  

tha t  he  is  qu i te  harsh  and we were  o therwise  exc i ted  tha t  

he  had been appo in ted  but  I  d id  say,  perhaps i t  wou ld  be  10 

best  tha t  he  keeps a  c lose  check on  h is  temper.    

 And I  d id  ment ion  tha t  there  was an inc ident  when  

he in te r fe red  w i th  my work  when I  was supposed to  a r res t  a  

person where  he  ind ica ted  tha t  I  d id  no t  a f fec t  an  ar res t  

bu t  we were  speak ing  on casua l  te rms as  peop le  f rom 

Mhlongo surname,  bo th  shar ing  the  same su rname.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   Now,  you  go on  

to  say in  paragraph 38:  

“The comment  regard ing  h i s  p roper t ies  arose,  as  20 

I  sa id  (you have  got  peop le  who  are  genera l l y  

we l l -o f f  have a  tendency o f  d is respect ing  

o thers) .  

I  ment ioned h is  p roper t ies  in  tha t  contex t . . . ”  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   But  once 
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aga in ,  I  was not  say ing  tha t  Mr  Mhlongo(s i c )  shou ld  be 

f i red  or  he  shou ld  no t  be  appo in ted  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Mr  Nxasana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Nxasana.  

INTERPRETER :    Mr  Nxasana,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    . . . tha t  he  be  removed.   Th is  was  

jus t  someth ing  we were  speak ing  about  in  genera l l y  casua l  

te rms.   And we a l so  happy because th is  i s  a  person  tha t  we  

a l l  knew.   And another  th ing  tha t  we were  ta lk ing  about  i s  10 

the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Nxasana ’s  mother,  her  maiden surname is  

Mhlongo and most  Mhlongo –  and Ms Mhlongo is  a lso  

Mhlongo.   So,  we  were  genera l l y  happy fo r  h im.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Paragraph 39 you say:  

“ I  a lso  came to  know o f  h is  p roper t ies  as  I  knew 

h im f rom an ea r ly  age and because we share  

fami ly  re la t ions . . . ”  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    I t  i s  cor rec t  in  the  sense tha t  we  

were  a lso  –  he  was the  r igh t  person and he was a  person  

tha t  we knew.   A person who is  we l l - know who a lso  ren ts  20 

ou t  p roper t ies .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    When I  quest ioned you ear l i e r  and I  

took  you to  Ms Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t ,  you sa id  tha t  you never  

had a  d i scuss ion  o f  –  about  the  proper t ies  because you 

knew noth ing  about  the  proper t ies .  
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COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  Cha i r.   I  cannot  be  ab le  to  

say where  those proper t ies  are  s i tua ted  but  when we had  

th is  conversa t ion  we were  speak ing  –  be ing  happy tha t  ou r  

cous in  had been appo in ted  to  tha t  pos i t ion .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    And when I  asked you ea r l ie r  on  about  

Ms Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t ,  you sa id  tha t  what  she was  say ing  

in  he r  a f f idav i t  was a l l  l i es  des igned to  suppor t  what  

Mr  Jouber t  was say ing?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  Cha i r.   What  I  am ind ica t ing  

is  tha t ,  in  as  much as  we d id  have a  conversa t i on  w i th  10 

Ms Mhlongo,  wha t  I  ind ica te  i s  a  l ie  i s  when i t  i s  now be ing  

used or  p resented in  such a  way tha t  i t  suppor ts  the  l ies  

tha t  have been  to ld  by  Mr  Jouber t .   We d id  have 

conversa t ions and they were  p leasant  in  na ture  and we 

were  a l l  happy but  now when they  come here  o r  when they  

are  b rought  here  they now be ing  to  inc lude –  or  Mr  R ichard  

Mdu l i  wh ich  is  no t  cor rec t .    

 When we spoke  about  Mr  Nxasana we were  a l l  

speak ing  in  happy te rms tha t  he  had been appo in ted .   She 

fu r the r,  even he rse l f  spoke,  ind ica ted  tha t  she was happy 20 

tha t  Mr  Nxasana had been appo in ted  and tha t  she w ishes 

tha t  we cou ld  jus t  come c lose  and be ab le  t o  ass is t  

Mr  Nxasana as  he  had been recen t ly  appo in ted .    

 Another  th ing ,  Cha i r.   I s  the  fac t  tha t  i t  had been  

ind ica ted  o r  she  had ind i ca ted  tha t  our  conversa t ion  was 
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be ing  recorded but  when those record ings are  needed,  they  

seem not  to  be  fo r thcoming wh ich  is  why I  say  th is  a f f idav i t  

now was be ing  used to  suppor t  the  un t ru ths  tha t  were  

be ing  to ld  by  Mr  Jouber t .    

 And we were  speak ing ,  bu t  we were  speak ing  in  

happy te rms,  as  I  have ind ica ted ,  tha t  Mr  Nxasana ’s  

mother  be ing  Mhlongo as  her  maiden surname and we were  

a l l  happy about  tha t .   But  now when i t  i s  p resented  here ,  i t  

i s  be ing  presented inco r rec t ly.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Now in  th is  a f f idav i t ,  the  present  10 

a f f idav i t ,  you r  a f f idav i t  you say two th ings  about  

Mr  Nxasana.   You say f i rs t l y.   I f  you  look a t  paragraph 37  

tha t  he  had t rea ted  you bad ly  in  a  case invo lv ing  one o f  h is  

c l ien ts  where  he  was ac t ing  as  an  a t to rney on  beha l f  o f  a  

c l ien t .   And you say fu r ther  tha t  because o f  tha t :   I  d id  no t  

l i ke  h im.    

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Cha i rperson,  i t  means. . .   

Cha i rperson,  concern ing  tha t .   I  th ink  when the  s ta tement  

was made,  the  essence o f  what  I  was t ry ing  to  say was not  

p roper ly  captured.   What  I  have  ind ica ted  or  sought  to  20 

ind ica te  was the  fac t  tha t  there  was an inc iden t  where  

Mr  Nxasana and I  d id  no t  see eye to  eye concern ing  the  

c l ien t  o f  h is  bu t  tha t  I  d id  no t  l i ke  tha t  par t i cu la r  inc ident ,  

no t  tha t  I  d is l i ked  h im as a  person.   I  have d i s l i ked  or  was 

unp leased by  tha t  par t i cu la r  inc ident .    
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 Bu t  overa l l ,  when we had these conversa t ions,  I  

was qu i te  happy  tha t  Mr  Nxasana has been appo in ted .   

Even i f  –  even though I  d id  ment ion  tha t  inc ident  tha t  I  say  

tha t  I  was unhappy w i th ,  i t  was no t  to  say he  shou ld  no t  be  

appo in ted  or  tha t  he  shou ld  be  removed f rom the  pos i t ion  

because even then,  I  do  no t  th ink  we had any say in  

whethe r  he  ge ts  appo in ted  or  no t .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    The second i ssue tha t  you men t ion  in  

th is  a f f idav i t  i s .   You say in  paragraph 39:  

“ I  came to  know o f  h is  p roper t ies  as  I  knew h im 10 

f rom an ear ly  age and a lso  because we share  

fami ly  re la t ions . . . ”  

So,  on  your  vers ion  tha t  you have g iven in  th is  a f f idav i t  

you knew o f  the  proper t ies .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    On tha t  par t i cu la r  po in t ,  Cha i r.   

The i ssue o f  h is  p roper t ies ,  i t  can  be a  we l l -know or  a  

p iece  o f  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  in  pub l i c  domain  i f  h is  

p roper t ies  a re  reg is te red and when he ren ts  ou t  –  when he 

is  ren t ing  ou t  h is  p roper t ies .   I  beg your  pardon.   That  i s  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  wou ld  be  we l l -known even though  I  may 20 

not  have in fo rmat ion  as  to  know exact ly  where  those  

proper t ies  are  s i tua ted .    

 Another  po in t  i s .   There  is  no  reason why i f  he  has 

proper t ies  tha t  I  wou ld  have then sa id  he  shou ld  no t  be 

appo in ted .   There  are  many peop le  who work  fo r  the  
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government  who have proper t ies  and tha t  i s  no t  an  issue.   

And some o f  t hese th ings,  I  wou ld  hear  them f rom 

Ms Mhlongo herse l f ,  Queen.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Co lone l  Mh longo.   Le t  us  no t  

confuse th ings.   D id  you ta l k  –  d id  your  conversa t ion  w i th  

Ms Mhlongo on  tha t  day i nvo lved ta l k ing  about  

Mr  Nxasana ’s  p roper t ies  or  no t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  Cha i r,  we d id  speak about  

tha t  he  had proper t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you te l l  Ms  Mhlongo tha t  you knew 10 

tha t  Mr  Nxasana had a  number  o f  p roper t ies?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  conf i rm ing –  a lso  con f i rm ing  

what  she was te l l ing  me.    

INTERPRETER :    [Speak ing  vernacu la r ]    

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  d id  ment ion  tha t  bu t  I  

was a lso  conf i rm ing some o f  the  th ings tha t  she had  sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  thought  you  sa id  ea r l ie r  on  when  

Mr  Hu l ley  took you th rough par ts  o f  Ms Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t  

tha t  you knew noth ing  about  Mr  Nxasana hav ing  p roper t ies ,  

a  number  o f  p roper t ies .   D id  I  hear  you incor rec t ly?  20 

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Cha i r,  you heard  me co r rec t l y  bu t  

what  . . . [d is to r t ion  present ]  i s  tha t  i t  was Queen who  

made. . .  [mechan ica l  in te r rup t ion  –  speaker  los t ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  [mechan ica l  in te r rup t ion  –  

speaker  los t ]  
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INTERPRETER :    [Speak ing  vernacu la r ]    

COLONEL MHLONGO :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  must  have  spoken 

somewhat  care less l y  o r  neg l igent l y  when I  have ind ica ted  

tha t  I  do  no t  know tha t  Mr  Nxasana had proper t ies .   I  do 

know about  tha t  and we d id  speak about  tha t  when  

Ms Mhlongo and I  were  hav ing  a  conversa t ion  tha t  indeed 

Mr  Nxasana does  have proper t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then a t  a  la te r  s tage,  I  unders tood 

you to  be  say ing ,  you knew tha t  Mr  Nxasana d id  have  

proper t ies  bu t  you d id  no t  know where  they were  loca ted.   10 

D id  I  unders tand you co r rec t l y?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    I  canno t  remember.   I  cannot  

remember  c lear ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  me ask th i s  quest ion .   A t  the 

t ime tha t  you had  tha t  d iscuss ion  w i th  Ms Mhlongo,  d id  you  

know where  Mr  Nxasana ’s  p roper t ies  were?  Because she  

says in  her  a f f idav i t  you to ld  her  where  they were  loca ted  

and she ment ioned,  Ntuzuma and  I  th ink  Umlaz i .   I  do  no t  

know wh ich  o the r  p laces.   D id  you know a t  tha t  t ime tha t  

Mr  Nxasana ’s  p roper t ies  were  in  those p laces,  o r  d id  you  20 

not  know? 

COLONEL MHLONGO :    I  d id  no t  know,  Cha i rpe rson ,  where  

the  proper t ies  a re  loca ted.   I  knew tha t  he  had the  

proper t ies  bu t  I  d id  no t  know where  they were  loca ted but  I  

d id  know tha t  h is  home is  s i tua ted  a t  Umlaz i ,  E -Sect ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Co lone l  Mh longo,  you are  a  po l i ce  

o f f i ce r.   You are  g iv ing  ev idence in  th is  Commiss ion  under  

oa th .   I  jus t  want  you to  re f lec t  on  your  ev idence.   

Remember  tha t  you are  under  oa th .   You are  a  po l i ce  

o f f i ce r.   I  am go ing  to  ask  you th is  quest ion  aga in .   A t  the  

t ime tha t  you had tha t  d iscuss ion  w i th  Ms Mhlongo.   D id 

you know or  d id  you not  know where  Mr  Nxasana ’s  

p roper t ies  were?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    As  I  have  ind ica ted ,  Cha i r.   What  I  

d id  know is  tha t  h is  home,  h is  –  or  where  he  grew up or  10 

where  h is  fami ly  i s  was a t  Umlaz i ,  E-Sect ion  and tha t  he  

had now bought  h im a  house o f  h is  own tha t  i s  a t  K loo f .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   D id  you  know whether  he  had a  

proper ty  in  Ntuzuma or  no t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :    I  d id  no t  know,  Cha i r.   I  on ly  go t  

tha t  f rom Queen.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  Co lone l  Mh longo.   When you 

responded to  Ms  Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t  by  way o f  your  own  

a f f idav i t  tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  now.   You never  sa id  i n  

tha t  a f f idav i t ,  as  I  see i t ,  maybe except  pa ragraph 40 you 20 

never  sa id  in  tha t  a f f idav i t ,  as  I  see i t ,  maybe  except  

parag raph 40,  you never  sa id  tha t  what  Ms Mhlongo was  

say ing  in  he r  a f f idav i t  was not  t rue ,  a l l  you  sa id  tha t  she  

had taken the  substance o f  you r  d iscuss ion  w i th  he r  ou t  o f  

contex t .   Do you  agree tha t  tha t  i s  what  you sa id  in  your  
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a f f idav i t  when you were  respond ing  to  Ms Mhlongo ’s  

a f f idav i t  namely  tha t ,  except  fo r  parag raph 40 – and we w i l l  

ta lk  about  i t  jus t  now,  except  fo r  paragraph 40 there  is  

nowhere  where  you sa id  what  she was say ing  was not  t rue ,  

a l l  you  sa id  was she had taken  the  substance o f  you r  

d iscuss ion  w i th  her  ou t  o f  contex t .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  con f i rm tha t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you d id  say ear l ie r  on  when Mr  

Hu l ley  was ask ing  you quest ions on  Ms Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t  

tha t  Ms Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t  was fu l l  o f  l i es  and i t  shou ld  10 

not  be  used a t  a l l  because i t  was made in  o rder  to  

cor robora te  Mr  Jouber t ’ s  vers ion .   Do you accept  tha t  tha t  

i s  what  you sa id?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  what  

I  sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  seems to  me tha t  there  are  two  

th ings you are  say ing  about  Ms Mhlongo ’s  a f f idav i t  

genera l l y  speak ing .   One,  in  your  a f f idav i t  you are  no t  

say ing  tha t  what  she was say ing  i n  her  a f f idav i t  about  your  

d iscuss ion  w i th  her  was a  l ie  bu t  you a re  say ing  i t  was 20 

taken out  o f  contex t .   But  when  you were  asked by  Mr  

Hu l ley  ea r l ie r  on  you sa id  i t  was a l l  l i es .  

 These are  two d i f fe ren t  th ings.   What  i s  the  t rue  

pos i t ion  and I  want  to  remind you tha t  you a re  under  oa th  

and you a re  a  po l i ce  o f f i ce r.   I s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  what  she 
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has  sa id  i s  a l l  l i es  and her  a f f idav i t  shou ld  no t  be  used o r  

i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  no ,  what  she has sa id  i s  no t  a l l  l i es ,  

she jus t  took the  substance o f  your  d i scuss ion  ou t  o f  

contex t .   What  i s  the  t rue  pos i t ion?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Cha i rperson,  what  I  am say ing  is ,  

we d id  have a  conversa t ion  w i th  Ms Mhlongo.   However ,  

when an a f f idav i t  was made i t  was now presented in  an  

inco r rec t  manner  o r  ra ther ,  in  an  improper  contex t .   As  she  

has ind i ca ted ,  we  used to  see each o the r ,  she wou ld  come 

to  my o f f i ce  qu i t e  o f ten  because we were  work ing  in  the 10 

same bu i ld ing ,  perhaps d i f fe ren t  f loors ,  bu t  she w i l l  

f requent  my o f f i ce  ra ther  than have some co f fee  and we 

wou ld  have conversa t ions.   We d id  speak about  th is  bu t  

now i t  has  been presented in  wh ich  a  way  tha t  i t  

cor robora te  the  vers ion  o f  Ter rence Jouber t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r .   Now I  wou ld  l i ke  

us  to  –  and i f  I  cou ld  jus t ,  sor ry ,  make one fu r the r  po in t .   

My unders tand ing  is  tha t  you knew Mr  Nxasana f rom a  very  

young age.  20 

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  know h im,  Cha i r ,  everybody 

knows h im,  he  is  a  boy who went  to  s tudy a t  Ongoye(? ) .   

So everybody know h im as a  person who grew up in  

Durban.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Now,  Mr  –  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  you were  
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d ragged in to  th is  mat te r  because you had been imp l ica ted  

by  Genera l  Booysen.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  reca l l  tha t .  

ADV HULLEY SC :   And you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  i f  you  –  Genera l  

Booysen had p rov ided and a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Jouber t  to  the  

Commiss ion  and tha t  a f f idav i t  appears  a t  page 69  o f  the 

bund le .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   And you d isputed tha t  a f f idav i t ,  the 

a f f idav i t  o f  Te r rence Jouber t .  10 

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I f  you  may  repeat  the  quest i on?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   You d isputed th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  

Ter rence Jouber t .   Maybe you shou ld  look a t  the  ac tua l  

a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  a t  page 69.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe you can te l l  h im whethe r  i t  i s  the  

f i rs t  one or  the  second one,  Mr  Hu l ley .  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  the  f i rs t  one,  

i t  i s  the  a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  da ted  25  November  2013.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  maybe le t  me –  Co lone l  Mh longo,  

le t  me jus t  exp la in .   You w i l l  remember  tha t  Mr  Jouber t  20 

deposed to  two a f f idav i t s .   The f i rs t  one was imp l ica t ing  

you in  wrongdo ing .   The second one –  in  the  second one  

he was say ing  he  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t .    

 The one tha t  Mr  Hu l ley  i s  ta lk ing  about  i s  the  f i rs t  

one where  Mr  Jouber t  was imp l ica t ing  you in  wrongdo ing .   
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You unders tand tha t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Cha i r ,  I  unders tand tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Hu l ley  i s  now say ing  do  you 

remember  tha t  you d i sputed what  Mr  Jouber t  sa id  in  h is  

f i rs t  a f f idav i t .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley .  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r .   And when you 

d isputed i t ,  the  bas i s  on  wh ich  you d isputed i t  i s  because  

you sa id  tha t  Mr  Jouber t  had w i thdrawn tha t  a f f idav i t ,  so  i t  10 

was not  a  genu ine  a f f idav i t ,  i t  was not  h is  a f f idav i t .   Do 

you reca l l  tha t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV HULLEY SC :   I f  I  can  jus t  cor rec t  one th ing?  Sor ry ,  I  

sa id  w i thdrawn,  you d id  no t  w i thd raw i t ,  you  d i sputed i t  on  

the  bas is  tha t  he  had,  tha t  i s  Mr  Jouber t ,  had cha l lenged 

the  au thent ic i t y  o r  the  genu ineness o f  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t .   

He sa id  i t  was no t  h is  a f f idav i t .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  do  reca l l  tha t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Now you f i l l ed  an  a f f idav i t  w i th  the  20 

Commiss ion .   I f  you  wou ld  tu rn  w i th  me to  page 6 ,  tha t  i s  

your  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  be fore  the  Commiss ion  and i t  i s  an  

a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  da ted  9  May 2019 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry ,  what  page  is  tha t ,  Mr  Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Pardon me,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  page 6 .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  cont inue.  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  do  see tha t  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r ,  

commiss ioned on  the  9  May 2019.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Turn  to  page 16 o f  tha t  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess,  Mr  Hu l ley ,  you mean pag ina ted 

16,  16  o f  the  a f f idav i t?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Pardon me,  pag ina ted 16 o f  the  bund le ,  

in  o ther  words –  no t  16  o f  the  a f f idav i t ,  pardon me,  Mr  

Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  we not  cover  th i s ,  Mr  Hu l l ey?   I  10 

thought  we covered th is  o r  i s  there  someth ing  tha t  you 

want  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HULLEY SC :   I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  –  pardon  me,  Mr  

Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  we  d id  cover  th i s  spec i f i c  

a f f idav i t ,  we recovered the  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  have jus t  dea l t  

w i th  be fo re ,  bu t  th is  one he d id  no t  conf i rm – or  I  do  no t  

reca l l  tha t  he  conf i rmed i t  on  the  record  and I  cou ld  no t  

f ind  when I  read th rough the  t ransc r ip t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i s  tha t  so?  Okay,  a l r i gh t .   Okay,  go  

ahead?  20 

ADV HULLEY SC :   I  want  to  be  on  the  sa fe  s ide .   Thank  

you,  Mr  Cha i r .   Do you see th is  document ,  S i r ,  a t  page 16?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  am on page 16.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   And you w i l l  see  there  tha t  there  is  

r igh t  a t  the  top  i t  re fe rs  to  deponent .   Do you see tha t?   
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And there  is  a  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   On page 16 I  see  wr i t ten :   

In t roduct ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  you are  in  the  wrong p lace.   Le t  us  

go  to  the  –  to  where  your  a f f idav i t  s ta r ts ,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  page  

6 ,  says 006.   A re  you ab le  to  f ind  tha t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  th ink  I  can see now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you found i t?   Jus t  a  few pages 

a f te r  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  f i le .  

ADV HULLEY SC :   The document  –  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  10 

sa id  he  must  se t  as ide .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Oh,  the  las t  one,  i s  i t  the  las t  one?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Not  the  las t  one,  the  f i rs t  one.   The  

very  f i rs t  one.   A l l  tha t  i t  i s  has go t ,  AA1,  i t  has  go t  

annexure  AA1 tha t  i s  wr i t ten  in  manuscr ip t  and you 

re fer red  to  tha t  ear l ie r  on ,  dur ing  the  ad jou rnment .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  have got  i t ,  tha t  one is  in  

f ron t  o f  me.   I t  is  annexure  AA1.   Annexure  AA1 and i t  i s  

16 .   I t  i s  NEA10/006.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  the  page.  20 

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Annexure  AA1.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  where  i t  says  006,  tha t  i s  the  page 

number  bu t  when we g ive  you the  page  we w i l l  no t  say  006,  

we w i l l  jus t  say  page 6 .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Okay,  006.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  no  zero  zero ,  okay?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   6 ,  okay,  thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  go  to  page 16 o f  the  bund le  wh ich  

is  the  las t  page o f  tha t  a f f idav i t .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have got  i t?   Go to  16 ,  the  las t  

page.  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  16 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  maybe Mr  Hu l ley  I  may as  

we l l  do  what  I  thought  you were  go ing  to  do  anyway.  10 

ADV HULLEY SC :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  s ignatu re  your  s ignatu re  above 

the  word  deponen t ,  Co lone l  Mh longo? 

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  i t  i s  my s ignature .   That  i s  

cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you s ign  th is  a f f idav i t  be fore  a  

Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And was tha t  on  the  9  May 2019? 

COLONEL MHLONGO :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And before  you  s igned d id  you take  an  

oath?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  d id ,  Cha i r ,  the  oa th  was  

admin is te red by  Co lone l  Ma joz i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you had read th i s  a f f idav i t  be fore  
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you  took the  oa th? 

COLONEL MHLONGO :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  I  read i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you sa t is f ied  yourse l f  tha t  i t s  

contents  were  t rue  and co r rec t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Mr  Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r .   Now I  wou ld  jus t  

l i ke  you to  tu rn  to  page 12 o f  th is  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley ,  I  am sor ry ,  I  jus t  wan t  us  to  

have more  o r  less  the  same idea o f  how long w i l l  you  be.  10 

ADV HULLEY SC :   I  had ant ic ipa ted  tha t  we wou ld  no t  be 

longer  than an hour  to  an  hour  and  a  ha l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   

ADV HULLEY SC :   I  th ink  i t  takes –  bu t  my  es t imate  

a lways seems to  be  a  l i t t le  b i t  more  ambi t ious  tha t  what  

ac tua l l y  tu rns  ou t  to  be  the  case.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :   I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  –  there  i s  no t  much 

to  cover  in  th is  par t i cu la r  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV HULLEY SC :   And a f te r  th is  I  want  to  go  ove r  to  the 

( ind is t inc t  –  record ing  d i s to r ted)  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  do  you th ink  you might  be  ab le  to  do  

by  ha l f  past  twe lve?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   I t  m igh t  be  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  a  s t re tch  bu t  I  
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am cer ta in l y  hop ing  tha t  we can do  i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  th ink  t ry  you r  best ,  le t  us  see  

how i t  goes because I  th ink  the  essence to  a  very  la rge  

ex ten t  has been covered but  jus t  t ry  your  best  and see.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Co lone l  Mh longo,  a re  you a t  page 12?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  am.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   In  th is  a f f idav i t  a t  paragraph 11.2  you 

dea l  w i th  the  par t i c ipa t ion  o f  –  in  f ind ing  d i r t  aga ins t  

Mxo l i s i  Nxasana.   Paragraph 11.2 .1  you say the  fo l low ing:  

“The source  fo r  g round in  a l legat ions o f  10 

par t i c i pa t ion  i n  f ind ing  d i r t  aga ins t  Advocate  Mxo l i s i  

Nxasana is  the  a l leged a f f idav i t  by  Ter rence John 

Jouber t . ”  

Then you say a t  parag raph 11.2 .2  tha t :  

“Ter rence John Jouber t  has den ied  any knowledge  

or  assoc ia t ion  w i th  the  a l leged a f f idav i t  se t  fo r th  by  

Genera l  Booysen in  h is  s ta tement . ”  

And you say:  

“ I  a t tach  herewi th  annexure  AA2 in  conf i rmat ion  to  

the  e f fec t  tha t  Te r rence John Jouber t  re jec ted  be ing  20 

the  au thor  and the  deponent  o f  the  a l leged a f f idav i t  

as  a l leged by  Genera l  Booysen. ”  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  saw tha t .   I  sa id  tha t  

because there  was an a f f idav i t  s igned(? )  by  h im.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   And i f  you go –  i f  you  tu rn  to  page 17,  
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tha t  i s  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  you a re  re fer r ing  to .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   And i f  you go to  page 18 a t  paragraph 3  

a t  the  top  o f  tha t  page you w i l l  see  he says the  fo l low ing:  

“ I  perused the  a f f idav i t  and saw tha t  my deta i l s…”  

He is  re fe r r i ng  now to  the  ear l ie r  a f f idav i t ,  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

the  25  November  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Th is  i s  a  –  Mr  Hu l ley ,  I  am so r ry ,  you 

say he –  you want  to  make i t  c lear  i t  i s  Mr  Jouber t  ta lk ing  

now.  10 

ADV HULLEY SC :   Th i s  i s  Mr  Jouber t  ta lk ing ,  thank you,  

Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   Okay,  cont inue.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Says in  the  th i rd  sentence f rom the  top  

o f  tha t  paragraph :  

“ I  perused the  a f f idav i t  and saw tha t  my deta i ls  

were  conta ined in  the  document  as  we l l  as  a  

s ignature  wh ich  c lose ly  resembled mine.   I  had read  

the  contents  o f  the  a f f idav i t  and d id  no t  recogn ise  

any o f  the  in fo rmat ion  conta ined there in .   I  d id  no t  20 

assoc ia te  myse l f  w i th  any o f  the  in fo rmat ion  

conta ined in  the  a f f idav i t  and i t  was c lear  to  me tha t  

I  had not  compi led  the  a f f idav i t .   I  have abso lu te l y  

no t  knowledge o f  wr i t ing  anyth ing  conta ined in  i t . ”  

That  was the  paragraph tha t  you were  re ly ing  upon in  th i s  



29 JULY 2021 – DAY 424 
 

Page 42 of 52 
 

second a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Now th is  pa r t i cu la r  a f f idav i t ,  where  d id  

you get  i t  f rom?  I  am ta lk ing  about  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  

Ter rence Jouber t  wh ich  is  annexure  AA2 to  your  a f f idav i t .   

Where  d id  you ge t  th is  a f f idav i t  f rom?   

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Th i s  a f f idav i t  was ava i lab le  and 

was spoken abou t  even on the  med ia  newspapers ,  such as  

C i ty  Press.   I  cannot  remember  how I  downloaded i t ,  i t  was  

an a f f idav i t  tha t  was ava i lab le  in  the  med ia .  10 

ADV HULLEY SC :    Bu t  your  own knowledge was you knew 

tha t  th is  a f f idav i t ,  i f  I  unders tand  what  you are  say ing  in  

your  most  recen t  a f f idav i t ,  and I  am ta lk ing  about  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  22  February  2021 tha t  we re fe r red  to  ea r l ie r  on .   

I f  I  unders tand cor rec t l y ,  you knew tha t  th i s  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  

Jouber t ,  the  second a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Jouber t ,  you knew tha t  

i t  was fa lse ,  cor rec t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  am unab le  to  answer  tha t  

quest ion ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Why are  you unab le?  20 

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Because I  do  no t  unders tand where  

the  person tha t  is  ask ing  the  quest ion  where  he  is  go ing  

w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  impor tan t ,  where  he  i s  

go ing  w i th  i t ,  what  i s  impor tan t  i s  whether  you unders tand  



29 JULY 2021 – DAY 424 
 

Page 43 of 52 
 

the  quest ion  and  whether  you have got  an  answer  to  the  

quest ion .   You unders tand the  quest ion ,  do  you not?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  do  unders tand the  quest ion .   

Yes,  I  do  unders tand the  quest ion  though I  –  yes,  rea l l y ,  I  

cou ld  no t  remember ,  I  do  no t  remember  where  I  

downloaded the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  do  you want  to  –  okay,  I  see 

because Co lone l  Mh longo has dec ided to  speak in  Eng l ish  

now.   Le t  me re f resh your  memory .   Mr  Hu l ley ’s  quest ion  

was th is .   When  you den ied  wha t  Mr  Jouber t  sa id  in  h is  10 

f i rs t  a f f idav i t ,  you  den ied  i t  on  the  bas is  tha t  he  had  s igned  

an a f f idav i t  –  he  had s igned h i s  second a f f idav i t  where  he  

was d isassoc ia t ing  h imse l f  f rom the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t .    

So  Mr  Hu l ley ’ s  quest ion  is  when you re l ied  on  Mr  

Jouber t ’ s  d isassoc ia t ion  o f  h imse l f  f rom the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  

you knew what  the  t rue  pos i t ion  was,  i s  tha t  no t  so? 

COLONEL MHLONGO :   That  i s  what  I  was confused about  

because the  one tha t  I  had downloaded,  the  second  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Jouber t  where  he  d i s tances h imse l f  w i th  the  

one tha t  Mr  Booysen had re l ied  on .   I t  then le f t  me 20 

wonder ing  wh ich  one was Mr  Booysen re fer r ing  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r .   And you knew i t  

was fa lse  because you were  aware  tha t  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t ,  

tha t  wh ich  is  da ted  the  25  November  2013,  you knew tha t  
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tha t  a f f idav i t  had  in  fac t  been deposed to  by  Mr  Jouber t .   

You knew tha t  as  a  fac t .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  wou ld  say yes,  i t  was wr i t ten  by  

h im because the  s ignature  i s  the  same.   When you look a t  

bo th  h i s  a f f idav i t s  the  s ignatu re  i s  the  same.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   In  fac t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second,  one second.   Mr  

In te rpre ter ,  maybe you cou ld  comple te  your  in te rpre ta t ion .   

He sa id  he  knew –  I  th ink  he  sa id  he  knew tha t  the  f i rs t  

a f f idav i t  had been s igned by  Mr  Jouber t  because the  10 

s ignature  i s  the  same.   D id  you hear  me,  Mr  In te rpre ter ,  o r  

a re  you f rozen aga in?  

INTERPRETER :    I  seem to  be  cu t t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

INTERPRETER:    I  can  hear  po r t ions  and o thers  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  can hear  you.   Okay,  I  was  

say ing  do  you want  to  redo your  in te rpre ta t ion?  Co lone l  

Mh longo sa id  yes he  knew tha t  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  was Mr  

Jouber t ’ s  a f f idav i t  because the  s ignature  was the  same,  

tha t  i s  the  s ignature  in  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t .  20 

INTERPRETER:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  s ignatu re  in  the  second a f f idav i t  

was the  same.  

INTERPRETER:    Yes,  yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Hu l ley?  
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ADV HULLEY SC :   And in  fac t  you had been – you had  

occup ied  an o f f i ce  in  an  NPA bu i ld ing  in  Kwazu lu-Nata l  and  

you had been asked to  leave tha t  bu i ld ing  because o f  the  

f i rs t  a f f idav i t  tha t  became ava i lab le  wh ich  accused  you o f  

in  fac t  t ry ing  to  f ind  d i r t  aga ins t  Mr  Nxasana,  i s  that  

cor rec t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  wou ld  yes,  Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

However ,  I  found  out  la te r  on  as  to  the  reasons why I  was 

asked to  vacate  tha t  space because in i t ia l l y  what  had  

happened was,  I  rece ived a  message f rom Pre to r ia  say ing  I  10 

shou ld  vacate  tha t  space or  those premises immedia te ly  

w i thout  me knowing the  exact  reasons as  to  why but  then 

subsequent ly  when th is  Commiss ion  had commenced i t s  

work  i s  when –  i t  i s  on ly  then tha t  I  learn t  tha t  in  fac t  the  

reason why I  was asked to  leave was because  o f  tha t  

a f f idav i t  as  we l l  as  the  reco rd ings.  

 Perhaps to  make  a  cor rec t ion ,  Cha i r ,  I  was to ld  to  

vacate  tha t  space because I  was  in fo rmed tha t  I  shou ld  

vacate  because  Mr  Nxasana says I  am go ing  around  

invest iga t ing  h im .   I  d id  then vacate .   Then subsequent ly  20 

when I  read tha t  a f f idav i t ,  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Jouber t ,  

and fu r ther  –  and connected tha t  to  the  repor t  tha t  I  had  

in i t ia l l y  rece ived tha t  Mr  Nxasana says I  am go ing  around  

invest iga t ing  h im ,  I  then saw tha t  th is  i s  the  reason why I  

was asked to  vacate  those premises.  
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ADV HULLEY SC :    Un less  I  m isunders tand your  a f f idav i t ,  I  

unders tood tha t  you had rece ived  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  on  the  

26  November ,  in  o ther  words the  day a f te r  you had been 

asked to  –  sor ry ,  the  day a f te r  the  a f f idav i t  had been 

deposed to .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I  a lso  rece ived the  a f f idav i t  a t  the  

Commiss ion  when I  was now be ing  in fo rmed tha t  I  have  

been imp l ica ted  i n  the  s ta te  captu re ,  no t  a t  the  t ime when I  

was d ismissed.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Now i f  you  tu rn  w i th  me to  bund le  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    We have h i t  ha l f  past  one –  ha l f  past  

twe lve ,  I  am sor ry ,  ha l f  past  twe lve .   I  w i l l  g ive  you  another  

ten  m inutes  to  t ry  and wrap up.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  am go ing  to  –  

look,  I  am go ing  to  wrap up th is  par t i cu la r  th ing ,  so  w i th  

re ference to  -  th i s  par t i cu la r  p ropos i t ion  w i th  re ference to  

parag raph 18 on page 210.34 o f  the  p resent  bund le .   Th is  

i s  the  –  th i s  i s  your  a f f idav i t  da ted  22 February  o f  2021.   In  

o ther  words,  you r  most  recent  a f f idav i t .   Have you  got  i t ,  20 

S i r?   Not  parag raph 34,  page 210.34 a t  parag raph 18.  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    Then you say in  tha t  paragraph:  

“The next  day…”  

That  i s  –  and i f  you look a t  the  preced ing  paragraph,  
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parag raph 17,  you are  ta lk ing  about  the  da te  o f  the  26 

November  2013.   You say:  

“The next  day I  rece ived a  te lephone ca l l  f rom my 

superv i sor  in fo rm ing me tha t  the  NDDP had ca l led  

and wanted me out  o f  the i r  o f f i ce  because I  was  

d igg ing  in fo rmat ion  adverse  to  h im.   I  thereaf te r  

came to  know o f  the  a f f idav i t  and the  aud io  

record ing . ”  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   What  I  want  to  exp la in ,  Cha i r ,  i s  

the  fac t  tha t  the  issue o f  me be ing  d ismissed is  one issue 10 

but  as  fo r  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Ter rence Jouber t ,  I  on ly  go t  to  

know about  i t  a t  the  Commiss ion  when the  Commiss ion  had 

s tar ted  i t s  work .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Co lone l  Mh longo,  d id  you say jus t  now 

tha t  you wanted us  to  separa te  or  d is t ingu ish  be tween the  

aud io  record ing  and the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Jouber t?    

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Cha i r ,  what  I  am say ing  is ,  when I  

was d ismissed I  was to ld  tha t  I  was be ing  d ismissed  

because the  NDPP was say ing  I  am invest iga t ing  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Th i s  i s  when he  was asked to  vacate  the  20 

o f f i ce ,  i s  i t  no t ,  no t  be ing  d i smissed.   When he was  asked 

to  vacate  the  o f f ice ,  i s  i t  no t?   That  i s  what  he  is  ta lk ing  

about .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Cha i r ,  I  am re fer r ing  to  when we  

were  asked to  –  when I  was asked to  vacate  the  o f f i ce ,  
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when we were  to ld  tha t  we shou ld  go  back to  be ing  under  

the  po l i ce .   I  used the  te rm d ism issed because there  is  a  

p ro jec t  tha t  I  was  cur ren t ly  busy w i th  and I  had to  cu t  t ies  

w i th  tha t  par t i cu la r  invest iga t ion  concern ing  the  peop le  

tha t  were  k i l led  dur ing  the  apar the id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  may have I  m isunders tood,  now I  

unders tand.   Okay,  so  i t  looks  l i ke  the  vacat ion  went  w i th  

h im be ing  expe l led  f rom the  NPA.   I s  tha t  what  he  means?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Hu l ley?   Okay,  yes .   10 

No,  I  am sor ry ,  Mr  In te rp re ter ,  p lease jus t  in te rp re t  tha t .   

You know,  I  somet imes fo rge t  because I  can unders tand  

h im.   So p lease in te rp re t .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   Yes,  I  was  expe l led  f rom the  NPA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   The on ly  po in t  I  want  to  make over  

there  inso far  as  tha t  was concerned is  tha t  you were  aware  

tha t  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  was in  fac t  cor rec t ,  so  much  so  tha t  

i t  had been re l ied  upon as  the  bas is  to  expe l  you f rom the  

NPA.   You were  aware  o f  tha t  f rom the  outse t .   So when  20 

you presented th is  second a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Jouber t  i t  was  

your  in ten t ion  to  m is lead the  Commiss ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   I t  i s  no t  so ,  Cha i r ,  what  I  wanted to  

show is  tha t  perhaps the  Commiss ion  shou ld  look a t  the  

fac t  tha t  here  is  a  w i tness who is  f i l i ng  two a f f idav i t s  wh ich  
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a re  no t  the  same,  o r  ra ther  cont rad ic to ry ,  and th is  person 

shou ld  in  fac t  be  charged fo r  pe r ju ry  and I  wanted to  show 

the  Commiss ion  tha t  th is  i s  no t  a  w i tness who can be re l ied  

upon or  i s  no t  an  honest  w i tness.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   And ye t  wha t  you d id  ins tead  was to 

accuse Genera l  Booysen o f  be ing  d ishonest  because you 

sa id  Genera l  Booysen shou ld  have  been aware  tha t  in  fac t  

the  second a f f idav i t  had been f i led  because i t  was in  the  

pub l i c  domain ,  so  you d id  no t  say  tha t ,  as  you are  now 

put t ing ,  tha t  Mr  Jouber t  was the  d ishonest  one,  you were  in  10 

fac t  re ly ing  upon the  second a f f idav i t  to  p rove tha t  the  f i rs t  

a f f idav i t  was not  h is .  

COLONEL MHLONGO :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r ,  because 

another  quest ion  tha t  then r i ses  as  to  why was Mr  

Booysen,  who had to  come and say these th ings and not  Mr  

Nxasana.   I  do  know why i t  was done l i ke  tha t  wh ich  is  a  

h is to ry ,  i f  I  were  to  g ive  i t  w i l l  take  a  number  o f  weeks to  

conc lude,  bu t  what  d id  happen a lso  I  must  s ta te  i s  the  fac t  

tha t  Mr  Booysen had sa id  to  me I  shou ld  come to  h im so  

tha t  we cou ld  ta l k  and tha t  in  the  event  tha t  I  do  no t  do  th is  20 

or  i f  I  do  no t  want  to  do  tha t ,  he  wou ld  go  and cause my 

name to  be  ta in ted  or  to  be  brought  in to  d is repute  a t  the 

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC :   I  want  to  go  over  to  the  t ransc r ip ts  bu t  I  
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see  you have in  fac t  indu lged me fo r  an  ex t ra  15  minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  I  th ink  we d id  dea l  w i th  

t ranscr ip ts  las t  t ime.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Or  par t  o f  the  t ranscr ip t  bu t  he  d id  no t  

respond rea l l y .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  I  th ink  we have dea l t  w i th  the 

substance because the  substance rea l l y  was about  the  

conversa t ion  he  had w i th  Mr  Jouber t  and then,  o f  course ,  

Ms Mhlongo ’s  conversa t ion  w i th  h im.   I  th ink  those were  

the  impor tan t  ones,  i s  i t  no t?  10 

ADV HULLEY SC :   That  i s  r igh t ,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t  me  check  

whethe r  h is  counse l  wou ld  l i ke  to  re-examine or  no t?   

Counse l  fo r  Co lone l  Mh longo,  wou ld  you l i ke  to  re -examine 

or…? 

ADV MANALA :   Wel l ,  Cha i r ,  a t  th is  s tage I  do  no t  th ink  i t  

i s  necessary .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MANALA SC :   Because the  ev idence tha t  has been 

presented was presented contex t  o f  h is  a f f idav i t .  20 

ADV MANALA SC :   So  ( ind is t inc t  –  reco rd ing  d i s to r ted)  

those a f f idav i t s ,  so  i t  i s  no t  necessary  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Mr  

Hu l ley ,  un less  you have someth ing  e lse  I  am ready to  

re lease Co lone l  Mh longo.  
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ADV HULLEY SC :    Noth ing  fu r the r ,  thank you,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have noth ing  fu r ther .   Co lone l  

Mh longo,  thank you very  much fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  

comple te  your  ev idence and thank  you to  your  lega l  team 

for  the i r  coopera t ion  as  we l l .   Thank you Mr  Hu l ley  and 

your  team.  

ADV HULLEY SC :   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We have come to  the  end  o f  the  

proceed ings fo r  t oday.   We a re  go ing  to  then ad jou rn .   We 

ad journ .  10 

COLONEL MHLONGO :  Thank you,  Cha i r .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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